
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Meeting: Monday, 16th November 2020 at 6.30 pm in Microsoft Teams 
 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Wilson (Chair), Brooker (Vice-Chair), Bowkett, Hampson, Lugg, 
D. Norman, Patel and Toleman 

Contact: Democratic and Electoral Services  
01452 396127 
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk  

 

AGENDA 

 VIEWING ARRANGEMENTS FOR REMOTE MEETINGS  
 
View the meeting here: https://bit.ly/38ixkgo  
 
The meeting is being broadcast live using Microsoft Teams. We recommend 
that you install the Microsoft Teams app on your device for the best viewing 
experience. If viewing via a web browser, please note that this is not possible if using Safari; 
instead please download the Microsoft Teams app or the 
Microsoft Edge browser. 
 
Further advice on accessing meetings through Teams, is available here: 
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Attend-a-live-event-in-Teamsa1c7b989-ebb1-4479- 
b750-c86c9bc98d84.  

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September. 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public provided that a question does not relate 
to: 
 

 Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or 

 Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in respect 
of individual Council Officers 

 

mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk
https://bit.ly/38ixkgo


2 
 

If you would like to ask a question at this meeting, please contact 
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk as soon as possible and by Wednesday 11 
November 2020. 

5.   PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)  
 
To receive any petitions and deputations provided that no such petition or deputation is in 
relation to: 
 

 Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or 

 Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings 
 
If you would like present a petition or deputation at this meeting, please contact 
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk as soon as possible and by Wednesday 11 
November 2020. 

6.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
To receive the final statement of accounts (report to follow). 

7.   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2020/21  
 
To receive the Annual Audit Letter from the Council’s External Auditors. 

8.   TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE 2020/21 SIX MONTHLY UPDATE 
(Pages 11 - 24) 
 
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources on Treasury 
Management.  

9.   INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY  2020/21 - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 25 - 48) 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Audit Risk Assurance regarding Internal Audit’s Activity 
Progress.  

10.   STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UPDATE (Pages 49 - 66) 
 
To receive the updated Strategic Risk Register.  

11.   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 67 - 68) 
 
To consider the Work Programme. 

12.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Monday 18 January 2021 at 6.30pm 

 
 
 
 

 
Jon McGinty 
Managing Director 
 
Date of Publication: Friday, 6 November 2020 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
 

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this information, or if 
you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information please call 01452 396396. 
 

Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.  
 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


1 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Monday, 14th September 2020 

   

PRESENT : Cllrs. Wilson (Chair), Brooker (Vice-Chair), Bowkett, Hampson, 
Lewis, Lugg, D. Norman and Patel 

   
Others in Attendance 
Corporate Director 
Head of Policy and Resources 
Audit, Risk and Assurance – Group Manager 
Accountancy Manager 
Democratic and Electoral Services Team Leader 
 

APOLOGIES : Cllr. Toleman 

 
 

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
17.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

18. MINUTES  
 
18.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2020 were confirmed as a 

correct record. 
 

19. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)  
 
19.1 A member of the public elected for the following three questions (to the 

Chair) to be read out by an officer on her behalf: 
 
 Can you confirm that there will be a public announcement of clarification, 

concerning the response to your question to the former Leader of the City 
Council at the O&S meeting on 10th March 2020?   The minutes of that 
meeting state that "Councillor Wilson queried whether Councillor James had 
read the internal audit report in 2017 which followed on from the 2014 
whistleblowing allegations. Councillor James advised that it had not been 
brought to his attention at the time."  This response has subsequently been 
proven to be completely untrue.  Cllr Watkins confirmed in the Council 
meeting on 9th July 2020, that the former Leader was in fact made aware of 
the audit report.  This has been further backed up in an email provided under 
a FOI request that clearly shows the former Leader was copied into an email 
concerning the Internal Audit Report. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14.09.20 

 

2 

 
19.2 The Chair responded that the communications referred to were now in the 

public domain and that any member of the public could draw their own 
conclusions from them. 

 
19.3 The second question was: 
 

Please could you confirm whether you agree with the stance being taken by both the 
Managing Director and Audit Risk Assurance?  This is in respect of whether information and 
documentation from a whistleblowing case, correctly raised under Gloucester City Council's 
Whistleblowing Policy should have been destroyed in spite of the fact this was contrary to 
both the Whistleblowing Policy and the Document Retention Policy.  It has been stated that 
the information did not need to be retained because the Whistleblowing case was about 
Marketing Gloucester, a company 100% owned by Gloucester City Council.  Where in the 
policy was this stated, as it should be noted that at every other stage in the process, the 
Council's Whistleblowing Policy was strictly adhered to as confirmed in an email from the 
Head of Paid Service at the time. 

 
19.4 The Chair responded that his view was that the documents should have been retained. He 

noted that some Members had attempted to retrieve the documents but had been unable to 
do so.  He also stated his belief that the Whistleblowing Policy should have encompassed 
those employed by Marketing Gloucester. In respect of a possible review of the policy, the 
Chair stated that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommended in March that a 
review should be undertaken. He confirmed that the review was in progress and hoped that 
it would conclude in December 2020.  

 
19.5 The  third question was: 
 

Please could you confirm whether a review is planned of the Council's Complaints Policy?  
The current policy states that a complaint will be acknowledged in one working day.  From 
recent experience this KPI is not being met.  A recent complaint submitted to the Council 
was only acknowledged after querying why no acknowledgement had been received after 
five working days. 

 
19.6 The Chair stated that he was unsure if a review of the complaints policy was imminent. He 

noted that such a review was in the Audit Plan but was being postponed until next year due 
to delays caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. He noted that the policy did state that the 
target response time to acknowledge a complaint was one day and that this was done 
through an automated receipt system and that the complaint in question should have been 
acknowledged. In respect of the associated KPIs, the Chair stated that performance would 
be followed up. 

  
 

20. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)  
 
20.1 There were no petitions or deputations. 
 

21. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
21.1 The Head of Policy and Resources confirmed that the auditors of the 

pension fund sought to have completed their work in October after which, the 
accounts could be signed off following the Committee’s November meeting. 
No other issues had been raised. 

 
22. DELOITTE EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2019/20 (ISA 260 TO THOSE 

CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE)  
 

Page 6



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14.09.20 

 

3 

22.1 The Head of Policy and Resources confirmed that there had been no change 
to the report since the Committee received it in July and that Deloitte was 
continuing with its work. This included a review of the narrative report, 
pension liabilities and, subsequently, the management letter to conclude. He 
also confirmed that no significant audit adjustments had been identified. 

 
22.2 The Chair asked if the comment that referred to there being material 

uncertainty caused by COVID-19 indentified by the Council’s external 
property valuer regarding the valuation of property. He asked if this was a 
general position taken by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors due to, 
for example, more people working from home. The Head of Policy and 
Resources stated that he would expect this to be included across all audits 
and confirmed that there would be no requirement to change the accounts.  

 
23. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY  2020/21 - PROGRESS REPORT  

 
23.1 The Audit, Risk and Assurance (ARA) Group Manager outlined audit activity 

which had been completed up until August 2020. She outlined that four 
assurance outcomes were confirmed. These were against safeguarding, 
voluntary and community sector grants, Freedom of Information requests 
and Blackfriars. All assurance opinions were positive.  The Group Manager 
also advised that with COVID-19 and the risks faced by the Council, 
additional activity had been completed by ARA as outlined in the report. She 
also confirmed that, since the end of August, further progress against the 
plan had been made and that ARA would support presentation of an Internal 
Audit Progress Report to the November 20 Committee meeting (i.e. an 
addition to the Audit & Governance Committee work programme). 

 
23.2 The Chair asked if the safeguarding officer group had met since October 

2019 given it was due to meet every six months. The ARA Group Manager 
confirmed that there have been subsequent safeguarding officer group 
meetings.  

 
23.3 With regard to community and voluntary groups providing evidence of 

outcomes following grant allocations, the ARA Group Manager stated that an 
up to date position would be confirmed with the lead officer confirmed and 
that it would be fed back to Committee. 

 
23.4 The Chair noted that the FOI Code of Practice stated that, public authorities 

with over 100 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) employees should, as a matter of 
best practice, publish details of their performance on handling requests for 
information under the Act. Internal Audit had identified that this information 
was not published by the Council. He queried whether this had been 
progressed or implemented. The ARA Group Manager that an up to date 
position would be confirmed with the lead officer. 

 
23.5 RESOLVED that:- The Audit and Governance Committee NOTE the Internal 

Audit Activity 2020/21 Progress Report. 
 

24. REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21  
 

Page 7



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14.09.20 

 

4 

24.1 The ARA Group Manager outlined that the COVID-19 pandemic had placed 
significant pressure on Council services. To ensure that the audit plan 
continued to meet the needs of the Council, a revised internal audit plan had 
been produced following consultation with the Senior Management Team. 
The Group Manager outlined key aspects of the report and that the 
continued focus was on Priority 1 activity where possible such as the three 
ICT audit themes. She also outlined the new assurance/support activities 
coming through due to Covid-19 risk themes and audit deferrals which had 
been carefully considered by ARA and the Senior Management Team. 

 
24.2 The Group Manager provided, by way of example, that the Events audit 

would be deferred to 2021/22 to ensure added value of the audit. This was 
due to there being significantly less events activity within 2020/21 due to the 
impact of the pandemic and relevant requirements. 

 
 
24.3 In response to a query from the Chair regards the proposed audit deferral for 

Code of Conduct, the ARA Group Manager advised that, while the Code of 
Conduct had been refreshed, the associated communications roll out, 
briefings and training events had been placed on hold due to Covid 19 
(pending a return to more normalised working arrangements). Greater 
flexibility had also been agreed by Senior Management Team and applied 
due to the Covid 19 impact and remote working arrangements. 

 
24.4 RESOLVED that:- The Audit and Governance Committee APPROVE the 

Revised Internal Audit Plan 2020/21. 
 

25. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
25.1 The Committee considered the Work Programme. It was agreed that a 

progress report against the revised audit plan would be provided at the 
Committee’s November meeting. The Head of Policy and Resources also 
advised that the final Statement of Accounts would be brought to the 
November Committee. The Corporate Director advised that the report on 
appointments to Outside Bodies could be provisionally added to the January 
Committee meeting. 

 
25.2 RESOLVED that:- The Work Programme be amended to reflect the above 

changes, and that the Audit and Governance Committee NOTE the Work 
Programme.  

 
26. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
16 November 2020 at 6.30pm 
 
 

Time of commencement:  6.30 pm hours 
Time of conclusion:  7.30 pm hours 

Chair 
 

 

Page 8



 
 
 
  
  

  

 
 

Meeting: Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet Briefing  

Cabinet 

  16 November 2020 

18 November 2020 

9 December 2020 

Subject: Treasury Management Update – Mid Year Report 2020/21 

Report Of: Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources 

Wards Affected: All   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No 

Contact Officer: Greg Maw, Accountancy Manager  

 Email: greg.maw@gloucester.gov.uk Tel: 396422 

Appendices: 1. Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

2. Interest rate forecasts 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of 

Practice for Treasury Management recommends that members be updated on 
treasury management activities regularly (TMSS, annual and midyear reports). This 
report covers the six months 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020 and therefore, 
ensures this Council is implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 

 
1.2 This report will highlight issues specific to the Council and also highlight interest rate 

forecasts as provided by the Council’s treasury advisors Link Asset Services.  
 

1.3 The body of the report provides an overview of the Councils performance for the 
first half 2020/21;  

 

 Appendix 1 highlights the key performance indicators in line with the 
Councils Treasury Management Strategy. 

 Appendix 2 Interest Rate Forecast. 
 

 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Audit and Governance Committee is asked, subject to any recommendations it 

wishes to make to Cabinet, to note the contents of the report.  
 
2.2 Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the contents of the report be noted.     
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
  
  

  

3.0     Annual Investment Strategy 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21, which includes 
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 26th March 2020.  
It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being: 

 Security of capital; 

 Liquidity; and 

 Yield 

3.1    The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  In the current economic 
climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash flow 
needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months, with highly 
credit rated financial institutions, using our suggested creditworthiness approach, 
including a minimum sovereign credit rating, and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay 
information. 

 
3.2 As shown by the interest rate forecasts in appendix 2, it is now impossible to earn the 

level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all investment rates are 
barely above zero now that Bank Rate is at 0.10%, while some entities, including 
more recently the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF), are offering 
negative rates of return in some shorter time periods. Given this risk environment and 
the fact that increases in Bank Rate are unlikely to occur before the end of the current 
forecast horizon of 31st March 2023, investment returns are expected to remain low. 

 
3.3 While the Bank of England has said that it is unlikely to introduce a negative Bank 

Rate, at least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit accounts are already offering 
negative rates for shorter periods.  As part of the response to the pandemic and 
lockdown, the Bank and the Government have provided financial markets and 
businesses with plentiful access to credit, either directly or through commercial 
banks.  In addition, the Government has provided large sums of grants to local 
authorities to help deal with the Covid crisis; this has caused some local authorities 
to have sudden large increases in investment balances searching for an investment 
home, some of which was only very short-term until those sums were able to be 
passed on.  
As for money market funds (MMFs), yields have continued to drift lower. Some 
managers have suggested that they might resort to trimming fee levels to ensure that 
net yields for investors remain in positive territory where possible and practical. 
Investor cash flow uncertainty, and the need to maintain liquidity in these 
unprecedented times, has meant there is a glut of money swilling around at the very 
short end of the market. This has seen a number of market operators, now including 
the DMADF, offer nil or negative rates for very short term maturities. This is not 
universal, and MMFs are still offering a marginally positive return, as are a number of 
financial institutions.  
Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the surge 
in the levels of cash seeking a short-term home at a time when many local authorities 
are probably having difficulties over accurately forecasting when disbursements of 
funds received will occur or when further large receipts will be received from the 
Government. 

 

Page 10



 
 
 
  
  

  

3.4 The average level of funds available for investment purposes during the year to date 
was £10.6m.  These funds were available on a temporary basis, and the level of funds 
available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of grants 
and progress on the Capital Programme. The Council holds £12m core cash 
balances for investment purposes (i.e. funds available for more than one year).      

 
Investment performance for the financial year to date as at 30th September 2020   

 

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance Investment Interest Earned 

7 day  -0.06% 0.32% £34,498 

1 month -0.02% 1.90% £3,559 

3 month  0.11% N/A N/A 

6 month  0.21% N/A N/A 

12 month  0.35% N/A N/A 

 
    

As illustrated, the Council outperformed the benchmark by 38 bps on 7 day 

investment returns, by 192 bps on 1 month investment returns.    

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 11



 
 
 
  
  

  

Interest Rate Profile - Half year ended 30 September 2020 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Bank Rate 7 day 1 mth 3 mth 6 mth 12 mth

High 0.10 0.00 0.14 0.56 0.62 0.77

High Date 01/04/2020 02/04/2020 20/04/2020 08/04/2020 14/04/2020 21/04/2020

Low 0.10 -0.08 -0.08 -0.07 -0.05 0.02

Low Date 01/04/2020 30/09/2020 30/09/2020 18/09/2020 21/09/2020 18/09/2020

Average 0.10 -0.06 -0.02 0.11 0.21 0.35

Spread 0.00 0.08 0.22 0.63 0.67 0.76

Page 12



 
 
 
  
  

  

4.0     New Borrowing 
 
4.1 No long term borrowing was undertaken during the period ended 30 September 2020.  

4.2     The graph and table below show the movement in PWLB certainty rates for the first 
six months of the year to date.  There has not been a great deal of volatility in PWLB 
rates since the start of the financial year, apart from a more significant spike up during 
the second half of August into early September. The 50 year PWLB target rate for 
new long term borrowing was unchanged at 2.30%.  

 

    

 

 

 

 

5.0     Debt Rescheduling 

5.1    Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 
climate given the consequent structure of interest rates and following the increase in 
the margin added to gilt yields which has impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since 
October 2010.  No debt rescheduling has therefore been undertaken to date in the 
current financial year. 

 

 

 

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year

Low 1.70% 1.67% 1.91% 2.40% 2.13%

Date 18/09/2020 30/07/2020 31/07/2020 18/06/2020 24/04/2020

High 1.94% 1.99% 2.19% 2.80% 2.65%

Date 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 08/04/2020 28/08/2020 28/08/2020

Average 1.80% 1.80% 2.04% 2.54% 2.33%

Page 13



 
 
 
  
  

  

6.0    Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 

6.1   It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 
borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators 
(affordability limits) are included in the approved TMSS.  

 

6.2     During the financial year the Council has operated within the treasury limits set out in 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and in compliance with the 
Council's Treasury Management Practices.    

 

7.0   Other 

 
7.1 The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on 

risk management.  Where an authority changes its risk appetite e.g. for moving 
surplus cash into or out of certain types of investment funds or other types of 
investment instruments, this change in risk appetite and policy should be brought to 
members’ attention in treasury management update reports.  
 

7.2 HM Treasury is consulting around the changes in PWLB rates following the increase 
to gilt yields plus 180bps in October 2019. The Council will continue to monitor the 
situation awaiting further guidance from HM treasury.  

 
7.5 The Council will continue to monitor its approach to short term borrowing in 

accordance with our treasury advisor forecasts and future Council events which 
impact on the Council borrowing requirement.  

 
8.0 Social Value Considerations  
 
8.1 This report notes the treasury management performance of the Council. There are 

no anticipated Social Value considerations from this report.   
 
9.0 Environmental Implications 
 
9.1  This report notes the treasury management performance of the Council. There are 

no anticipated environmental implications from this report. 
 
10.0 Financial Implications 
 
10.1 Contained in the report 
 

(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 

11.0 Legal Implications 
 
11.1 There are no legal implications from this report 

(Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 

12.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications  
 
12.1 There are no specific risks or opportunities as a result of this report 

Page 14



 
 
 
  
  

  

 
13.0 People Impact Assessment (PIA):  
 
13.1 A PIA screening assessment has been undertaken and the impact is neutral.   A full 

PIA is not required. 
 
 
14.0 Other Corporate Implications 

Community Safety 
 

14.1 None 
 

Sustainability 
 

14.2 None 
 

Staffing & Trade Union 
 
14.3 None 

  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
  
  

  

Appendix 1 
 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 30th September 2020 

 

 

Prudential Indicators 2019/20  
2020/21 Budget 

£m 

Six Months 
(Apr – Sept)  

Actual 
£m 

Authorised limit for external debt £150 £150 

Operational Boundary for external debt £135 £135 

Gross external debt £135 £112 

Investments N/A £21.4 

Net borrowing £135 £90.6 

 
Maturity structure of fixed and variable rate 
borrowing – upper and lower limits 

N/A £112 

Under 12 months £135 £44.9 

12 months to 2 years 0% - 100% 0.08% 

2 years to 5 years 0% - 100% 0.26% 

5 years to 10 years 0% - 100% 3.93% 

10 years to 20 years 0% - 100% 14.10% 

20 years to 30 years 0% - 100% 21.38% 

30 years to 40 years 0% - 100% 20.18% 

40 years to 50 years 0% - 100% 0% 

   

Upper limit of fixed interest based on net debt 100% 95% 

Upper limit of variable interest rates based on net 
debt 

100% 5% 

 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
  
  

  

Appendix 2  
  
INTEREST RATES FORECASTS 
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Group, provided the following forecasts on 11 August 
2020 (PWLB rates are non-HRA certainty rates, gilt yields plus 180bps): 
 

 
 

Additional notes by Link on this forecast table: - 
 Please note that we have made a slight change to our interest rate forecasts 

table above for forecasts for 3, 6 and 12 months.  Traditionally, we have used 
LIBID forecasts, with the rate calculated using market convention of 1/8th 
(0.125%) taken off the LIBOR figure. Given that all LIBOR rates up to 6 months 
are currently running below 0.1%, using that convention would give rise to 
negative figures as forecasts for those periods. However, the liquidity premium 
that is still evident at the short end of the curve, means that the rates actually 
being achieved by local authority investors are still modestly in positive 
territory. While there are differences between counterparty offer rates, our 
analysis would suggest that an average rate of around 0.05% is achievable for 
3 months, 0.1% for 6 months and 0.15% for 1 year. 

 During 2021, Link will be continuing to look at market developments in this 
area and will monitor these with a view to communicating with clients when full 
financial market agreement is reached on how to replace LIBOR. This is likely 
to be an iteration of the overnight SONIA rate and the use of compounded 
rates and Overnight Index Swap (OIS) rates for forecasting purposes. 

 If clients require forecasts for 3 months to 12 months beyond the end of 2021, 
a temporary fix would be to assume no change in our current forecasts. 

 We will, of course, maintain continuity by providing clients with LIBID 
investment benchmark rates on the current basis. 

 

The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to economies 
around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank 
Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its last meeting on 6th 
August, although some forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory could 
happen. However, the Governor of the Bank of England has made it clear that he currently 
thinks that such a move would do more damage than good and that more quantitative easing 
is the favoured tool if further action becomes necessary. As shown in the forecast table 
above, no increase in Bank Rate is expected within the forecast horizon ending on 31st 
March 2023 as economic recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged. 

 

Page 19



 
 
 
  
  

  

GILT YIELDS / PWLB RATES.  There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 
that bond markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down to 
historically very low levels. The context for that was heightened expectations that the US 
could have been heading for a recession in 2020. In addition, there were growing 
expectations of a downturn in world economic growth, especially due to fears around the 
impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with inflation generally at low 
levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued. Combined, these conditions were 
conducive to very low bond yields.  While inflation targeting by the major central banks has 
been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium 
rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers. 
This means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major 
impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. The consequence of this has been the gradual 
lowering of the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets.  Over the 
year prior to the coronavirus crisis, this has seen many bond yields up to 10 years turn 
negative in the Eurozone. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields 
in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has 
been a precursor of a recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated 
as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation 
of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of equities.   
 
Gilt yields had, therefore, already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus 
crisis hit western economies during March. After gilt yields initially spiked upwards in March, 
we have seen yields fall sharply in response to major western central banks taking rapid 
policy action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets during March, and starting 
massive quantitative easing driven purchases of government bonds: these actions also 
acted to put downward pressure on government bond yields at a time when there has been 
a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure financed by issuing government 
bonds. Such unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” times would have caused bond 
yields to rise sharply.  At the close on 30th  September, all gilt yields from 1 to 6 years were 
in negative territory, while even 25-year yields were only at 0.76% and the 50 year at 0.60%.  
  
From the local authority borrowing perspective, HM Treasury imposed two changes of 
margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning. The first 
took place on 9th October 2019, adding an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period 
rates.  That increase was then, at least partially, reversed for some forms of borrowing on 
11th March 2020, but not for mainstream non-HRA capital schemes.  At the same time the 
Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased infrastructure expenditure. 
It also announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on possibly further 
amending these margins; the HM Treasury consultation was initially due to end on 4th June, 
but that date was subsequently put back to 31st July.  To date, the outcomes of the 
consultation have yet to be announced but it is clear that HM Treasury will most likely no 
longer allow local authorities to borrow money from the PWLB to purchase commercial 
property if the primary aim is to generate an income stream (assets for yield). 
 
Following the changes on 11th March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation 
is as follows: -  

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

Page 20



 
 
 
  
  

  

 
It is possible that the non-HRA Certainty Rate will be subject to revision downwards after 
the conclusion of the HM Treasury consultation; however, the timing of such a change is 
currently an unknown, although it would be likely to be within the current financial year. 
 

 As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 180bps), above 
shows, there is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next 
two years as it will take economies, including the UK, a prolonged period to 
recover all the momentum they have lost in the sharp recession caused during 
the coronavirus shut down period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this 
period and could even turn negative in some major western economies during 
2020/21.  

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting: Audit and Governance Committee Date: 16th November 2020 

Subject: Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2020/21 

Report Of: Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor) 

Wards Affected: Not applicable   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No 

Contact Officer: Theresa Mortimer - Head of Audit Risk Assurance 

 Email: Theresa.Mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk  Tel: 396430 

Appendices: A: Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2020/21 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the Internal Audit activity progress in relation to the approved 

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Audit and Governance Committee is asked to RESOLVE to: 
 

(1) Accept the progress against the Revised Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 
2020/21; and 
 

(2) Accept the assurance opinions provided in relation to the effectiveness of the 
Council’s control environment comprising risk management, control and 
governance arrangements as a result of the Internal Audit activity completed to 
date. 

 
3.0 Background and Key Issues 
 
3.1       Members approved the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 at 9th March 2020 Audit and 

Governance Committee meeting.  
 

3.2 Covid 19 has placed significant pressures on Council services and has impacted 
(and continues to impact) the Council’s priorities, objectives and risk environment. 
Due to the changing position and to ensure that the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 
meets the assurance needs of the Council, the Revised Risk Based Internal Audit 
Plan 2020/21 was approved by Members at 14th September 2020 Audit and 
Governance Committee meeting.  
 

3.3 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS), this 
report (through Appendix A) details the outcomes of Internal Audit work carried out 
in accordance with the approved Revised Plan. 
  

Page 23

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk


3.4 The Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2020/21 at Appendix A summarises: 
 

• The progress against the 2020/21 Revised Risk Based Internal Audit Plan, 
including the assurance opinions on the effectiveness of risk management and 
control processes; 

• The outcomes of the Internal Audit activity during the period September and 
October 2020; and 

• Special investigations/counter fraud activity. 
 
3.5 The report is the second progress report in relation to the Internal Audit Plan 

2020/21. It is also the first progress report to reflect the approved 2020/21 Plan 
revision (due to the impact of Covid).  

 
3.6 As reflected within the Internal Audit Progress Report, examples of the new 

activities completed by Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) since the outcome of the 
pandemic include (but are not exclusive to):   
 

• Non-audit related administration support to Revenues and Benefit services in 
the processing of Business Grants and a data capture project regards dormant 
outstanding debtors to support future debt collection decision;  

• Non-audit related administration support to Housing services in the collation of 
the Housing Benefit payments (claimed for ‘Rough Sleepers’ place in safe 
accommodation) that will be reclaimed by the County Council; and 

• Counter fraud team support and action in regard to identified Business Support 
grant irregularities.  

 
4.0  Social Value Considerations 
 
4.1     There are no Social Value implications as a result of the recommendations made in 

this report. 
 
5.0 Environmental Implications 
 
5.1 There are no Environmental implications as a result of the recommendations made 

in this report. 
 
6.0 Alternative Options Considered 
 
6.1 No other options have been considered as the purpose of this report is to inform the 

Committee of the Internal Audit work undertaken to date, and the assurances given 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment operating in 
the areas audited. Non completion of Internal Audit Activity Progress Reports would 
lead to non compliance with the PSIAS and the Council Constitution. 

 
7.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
7.1    The role of the Audit Risk Assurance shared service is to examine, evaluate and 

provide an independent, objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment, comprising risk management, control and 
governance. Where weaknesses have been identified, recommendations have 
been made to improve the control environment. 

 

Page 24



7.2 The PSIAS require that the Chief Internal Auditor should report on the outcomes of 
Internal Audit work, in sufficient detail, to allow the Committee to understand what 
assurance it can take from that work and/or what unresolved risks or issues it needs 
to address. 

 
7.3 Consideration of reports from the Chief Internal Auditor on Internal Audit’s 

performance during the year, including updates on the work of Internal Audit, is also 
a requirement of the Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference (part of 
the Council Constitution). 

 
8.0 Future Work and Conclusions 
 
8.1 In accordance with the PSIAS and as reflected within the Audit and Governance 

Committee work programme, Internal Audit Activity Progress Reports against the 
approved Revised Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 are scheduled to be presented to the 
Audit and Governance Committee at the 18th January 2021, 8th March 2021 and 
19th July 2021 meetings. 

 
9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 No financial implications as a result of this report. 
 
 (Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 
10.0 Legal Implications 
 
10.1 Monitoring the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations assists the 

council to minimise risk areas and thereby reduce the prospects of legal challenge. 
 
 (One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 
11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications  
 
11.1 Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an independent, 

objective assurance opinion from being provided to those charged with governance 
that the key risks associated with the achievement of the Council’s objectives are 
being adequately controlled.  

 
12.0  People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:  
 
12.1 A requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 is for the Council to 

‘undertake an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance’. The Internal Audit Service is delivered by 
Audit Risk Assurance which is an internal audit and risk management shared 
service between Gloucester City Council, Stroud District Council and 
Gloucestershire County Council. Equality in service delivery is demonstrated by the 
team being subject to, and complying with, the Council’s equality policies. 

 
12.2 The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual 

negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required. 
 

Page 25



13.0  Community Safety Implications 
 

13.1 There are no Community Safety implications as a result of the recommendation 
made in this report. 

 
14.0  Staffing & Trade Union Implications 
 
14.1 There are no Staffing & Trade Union implications as a result of the recommendation 

made in this report. 
 

 
Background Documents: Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
   Revised Internal Audit Plan 2020/21  
  PSIAS 
  CIPFA Local Government Application Note for the UK PSIAS 
 

Page 26



 
 

   

  

 
Internal Audit Activity 

2020-2021 
 

Progress Report 

Page 27



        

1 
 

(1) Introduction 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 

Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The 

latter states that a relevant authority “must undertake an effective internal audit to 

evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 

processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 

The Internal Audit Service is provided by Audit Risk Assurance under a Shared 

Service agreement between Gloucester City Council, Stroud District Council and 

Gloucestershire County Council and carries out the work required to satisfy this 

legislative requirement and reports its findings and conclusions to management and 

to this Committee. 

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS) as representing “proper internal audit practices”. The 

standards define the way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established 

and undertake its functions.  

(2) Responsibilities  

Management are responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 

management processes, control systems (financial and non financial) and 

governance arrangements.  

Internal Audit plays a key role in providing independent assurance and advising the 

organisation that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. 

Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance for the Council. There are a range 

of external audit and inspection agencies as well as management processes which 

also provide assurance and these are set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate 

Governance and its Annual Governance Statement.   

(3) Purpose of this Report 

One of the key requirements of the standards is that the Chief Internal Auditor should 

provide progress reports on internal audit activity to those charged with governance. 

This report summarises: 

 The progress against the 2020/21 Revised Risk Based Internal Audit Plan, 

including the assurance opinions on the effectiveness of risk management 

and control processes; 

 The outcomes of the Internal Audit activity during the period September  and 

October 2020; and 

 Special investigations/counter fraud activity. 

Page 28



        

2 
 

(4) Progress against the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan, including the assurance 

opinions on risk and control 

The schedule provided at Attachment 1 provides the summary of 2020/21 audits 

which have not previously been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

The schedule provided at Attachment 2 contains a list of all of the 2020/21 Internal 

Audit Plan activity undertaken during the financial year to date, which includes, 

where relevant, the assurance opinions on the effectiveness of risk management 

arrangements and control processes in place to manage those risks and the dates 

where a summary of the activities outcomes has been presented to the Audit and 

Governance Committee. Explanations of the meaning of these opinions are shown in 

the below table.  

 

 

Assurance 

Levels 

Risk Identification Maturity Control Environment 

 
Substantial 

 
Risk Managed 
Service area fully aware of the risks relating to the 
area under review and the impact that these may 
have on service delivery, other service areas, 
finance, reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners, and staff.  All key risks 
are accurately reported and monitored in line with 
the Council’s Risk Management Strategy.  
 

 

 System Adequacy – Robust 
framework of controls 
ensures that there is a high 
likelihood of objectives being 
achieved 

 

 Control Application – 
Controls are applied 
continuously or with minor 
lapses 

 

 
Satisfactory 

 
Risk Aware 
Service area has an awareness of the risks 
relating to the area under review and the impact 
that these may have on service delivery, other 
service areas, finance, reputation, legal, the 
environment, client/customer/partners, and staff, 
however some key risks are not being accurately 
reported and monitored in line with the Council’s 
Risk Management Strategy. 
 

 

 System Adequacy – 
Sufficient framework of key 
controls for objectives to be 
achieved but, control 
framework could be stronger 

 

 Control Application – 
Controls are applied but with 
some lapses 

 

 
Limited 

 
Risk Naïve  
Due to an absence of accurate and regular 
reporting and monitoring of the key risks in line 
with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, the 
service area has not demonstrated an satisfactory 
awareness of the risks relating to the area under 
review and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, finance, 
reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners and staff.   
 

 

 System Adequacy – Risk of 
objectives not being achieved 
due to the absence of key 
internal controls 

 

 Control Application – 
Significant breakdown in the 
application of control 

Page 29



        

3 
 

(4a) Summary of Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control 

The pie charts provided below show the summary of the risk and control assurance 

opinions provided within each category of opinion i.e. substantial, satisfactory and 

limited in relation to the 2020/21 audit activity undertaken up to October 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



        

4 
 

(4b) Limited Control Assurance Opinions  

Where audit activities record that a limited assurance opinion on control has been 

provided, the Audit and Governance Committee may request Senior Management 

attendance at the next meeting of the Committee to provide an update as to their 

actions taken to address the risks and associated recommendations identified by 

Internal Audit.  

(4c) Audit Activity where a Limited Assurance Opinion has been provided on 

Control 

During the period September and October 2020, no limited assurance opinions on 

control have been provided on completed audits from the 2020/21 Revised Internal 

Audit Plan. 

(4d) Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions 

Where audit activities record that a satisfactory assurance opinion on control has 

been provided and recommendations have been made to reflect some 

improvements in control, the Committee can take assurance that improvement 

actions have been agreed with management to address these. 

(4e) Internal Audit Recommendations 

During the period September and October 2020 Internal Audit made, in total, 5 

recommendations to improve the control environment, none of these being a high 

priority recommendation and 5 being medium priority recommendations (100% 

accepted by management).  

The Committee can take assurance that all high priority recommendations will 

remain under review by Internal Audit, by obtaining regular management updates, 

until the required action has been fully completed.  

(4f) Risk Assurance Opinions  

During the period September and October 2020, no limited assurance opinions on 

risk have been provided on completed audits from the 2020/21 Revised Internal 

Audit Plan.  

Where a limited assurance opinion is given, the Shared Service Audit/Risk Technical 

Officer will be provided with the Internal Audit report(s) to enable the prioritisation of 

risk management support.  

(4g) Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 Refresh – Covid 19  

Covid 19 has placed significant pressures on Council services and has impacted 

(and continues to impact) the Council’s priorities, objectives and risk environment.  

Page 31



        

5 
 

Due to this changing position and to ensure that the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 

meets the assurance needs of the Council, the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 was 

reviewed and refreshed in consultation with Senior Management Team. This 

included consideration of newly identified activities, current activities that should be 

prioritised within 2020/21 and activity deferrals/cancellations (due to risk).  

The Revised Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 was presented to Audit and Governance 

Committee on 14th September 2020 and approved. This included reflection of the 

new activities completed by ARA since the outcome of the pandemic.  

For example and as reflected within the Internal Audit Progress Report, to date 

within 2020/21 ARA has provided: 

 Non-audit related administration support to: 

o Revenues and Benefit services in the processing of Business Grants 

and a data capture project regards dormant outstanding debtors to 

support future debt collection decision; and 

o Housing services in the collation of the Housing Benefit payments 

(claimed for ‘Rough Sleepers’ place in safe accommodation) that will 

be reclaimed by the County Council. 

 Counter fraud team support and action in regard to identified Business 

Support grant irregularities.  

  

Page 32



  Attachment 1      

6 
 

Completed Internal Audit Activity during the period September and 

October 2020 

Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control 
 

Service Area: Council Wide 

Audit Activity: Key ICT Project Governance 

Background 

As part of the 2018/19 and 2019/20 Internal Audit Plans, a review of Key ICT Project 

Governance has been undertaken.   

The internal audit review was undertaken within two financial years to ensure appropriate 

review and consideration of key ICT projects, to provide assurance that the 

selected/sampled projects aligned with the strategic development plan, were appropriately 

managed and that expected benefits were properly quantified and realised. 

A Key ICT Project Governance audit position statement was included within the Annual 

Internal Audit Report 2018/19. This report is to summarise and conclude the overall findings 

from the internal audit.  

Scope 

The scope of the audit included, but was not be limited to, the following areas: 

 The Council has a defined policy/process/framework for ICT project governance; 

 All projects align to the Council’s ICT Strategy and objectives; 

 Projects are supported by a documented and authorised Business Case (including 

allocation of a lead officer and project sponsor at senior management level); 

 Project scope and requirements are clearly defined; 

 Costs have been reliably estimated and are subject to real time monitoring; 

 Project monitoring is completed on a regular basis and at an appropriate level; and 

 Project benefits are both visible and quantifiable. 

Initial Audit findings were reported in draft to management in January 2020. Additional audit 

trail was then required to conclude the audit and ARA remained active in key contact 

communication to support this. Final audit trail was obtained in August 2020.  

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory 

Control Assurance – Satisfactory 

Page 33



  Attachment 1      

7 
 

 
Key Findings 

Council ICT services are delivered by Civica Ltd with management and monitoring by 

designated officers within the Council. ICT services manage the initiation, development and 

completion of all Council ICT projects.   

Audit examination of the supporting Book of Work highlighted a total of 23 separate projects 

in 2019/20.  Examples included the implementation of Microsoft SharePoint and OneDrive, 

migration of SQL Server databases to Microsoft Azure, Councillor’s laptops and the Data 

Centre move.  Audit testing was directed towards a sample of four ICT projects. 

Audit review of key ICT documents and testing of the four sampled ICT projects identified a 

number of areas of good practice, including (but not exclusive to): 

 A documented and approved ICT Strategy is in place listing all key ICT projects;   

 Each year’s ICT Strategy is subject to review and approval by the Head of Policy and 

Resources and the Customer Service Programme Manager; 

 All project work is tracked and recorded in the Council’s ‘Book of Work’;   

 Civica provide monthly Programme Status reports outlining progress against each 

ICT project; 

 Civica have appointed an experienced Project Manager to manage all Council project 

assignments;  

 Supporting project documentation is held in a central data repository on Microsoft 

Teams, with access restricted to authorised ICT personnel;  

 Key project documentation identified during the review included Business Cases, 

Project Plans, Risk/issues Logs, Technical Specifications and Project Initiation 

Documents. Business Cases had not been prepared for those projects identified 

within the ICT Strategy as the projects and the project detail had been approved 

when the ICT Strategy 2017-2019 was approved; and 

 Effective processes are in place to monitor and manage project spend with costs 

being recorded within the Council’s Civica finance system and project costs being 

monitored at every meeting of the ICT Strategy Board. 

The audit also identified that Post Implementation Review is not currently completed for ICT 

projects. A post implementation review is a process to independently assess whether the 

objectives of and the benefits arising from the project were met.  It enables an assessment 

against project goals, benefits and costs together with a review of lessons learnt, enabling 

the identification of what went well during the project as well as identification of what didn’t 

go well and the review of any issues experienced during the project. These can then be 

assessed to determine how they could have been prevented  or better addressed, enabling 

this learning to be fed into future projects to prevent the recurrence of similar issues.  

Page 34



  Attachment 1      

8 
 

The Post Implementation Review also provides an opportunity to assess the performance of 

all individuals and organisations involved in the project to identify opportunities for 

improvement in future projects. Assessing the performance of any external organisations 

including suppliers involved in the project can be used to support the decision making for 

involvement in future projects. 

Conclusion 

The audit review of Key ICT Project Governance has resulted in Satisfactory assurance for 

both risk identification maturity and control environment.  Implementation of the audit 

recommendation regards post project implementation review will further strengthen controls 

and the resulting assurance levels.  

Management Actions 

Management have responded positively to the recommendation made. 

 

 

Service Area: Place 

Audit Activity: Licensing - Premises 

Background 

The Council supports the local economy by ensuring that businesses providing licensable 

services are regulated to protect the public or others from harm. Licences are generally 

subject to a fee designed to cover service costs.  

The Premises Licence regulations form part of the Licensing Act 2003 and are in place to 

control the following licensable activities: 

 Sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on or off the premises; 

 Provision of regulated entertainment; and 

 Provision of late-night refreshment (provision of hot food and/or hot drink between 

11pm and 5am). 

 

Scope 

This audit reviewed the fee-setting arrangements, administration and the monitoring of 

compliance with legislated requirements for the granting of licences relating to premises 

licensing. In particular, to provide assurance that: 

 Licences issued/renewed are managed in accordance with the Premises Licence 

Regulations; and 

Page 35



  Attachment 1      

9 
 

 Licence fees are paid in advance of issue or renewal of licence and are correctly 

coded and receipted in the Council’s General Ledger.  

During the period 1st March 2020 to 31st July 2020 the service processed 102 applications 

under the Licensing Act of which 12 were new applications. 

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory 

Control Assurance – Satisfactory 

Key Findings 

Licensing Act 

 The Gloucester City Council webpages for premise licences provides clear 

information on the activities which require a licence and includes guidance on the 

application process and statutory requirements.  

 In comparison with other local authorities, the Council is more limited in the 

information it offers, however all required actions are clearly noted and the 

information is sufficient for an applicant to apply for a licence.  

Application Process 

 Applicants can submit their application electronically or download and print a hard 

copy and send via email or post to the Council. The application form to print is of the 

same standard as other local authorities and is self-explanatory in its format.  

 A copy of the completed application must be sent to the responsible authorities (e.g. 

Gloucestershire Constabulary) with the onus on the applicant to do this (a hard copy) 

or on the Council if completed electronically. As back-up, the Business Support team 

will send a fortnightly email of licence applications received to all responsible 

authorities, so it is clear when an applicant has not fulfilled this requirement.  

 Applications are received by the Business Support team who check all relevant 

documents are attached and that application forms have been completed correctly. A 

second check is then provided by the Council’s City Centre Improvement Officers to 

ensure statutory requirements have been met.  

 The Uniform system is used for initial input of licence application data and where the 

final decision is recorded. The completed licence application, supporting 

documentation and issued licence are stored on Information@Work.  

Objections 

 As per the Licensing Act regulations, an applicant must advertise their application for 

28 consecutive days as a notice outside the premises. The notice should also be 

advertised in a local newspaper or equivalent at least once during the period of ten 

working days after an application has been made.  

Page 36



  Attachment 1      

10 
 

 Following discussions with a City Centre Improvement Officer it was confirmed that 

there is a procedure in place to check that these requirements are being followed. 

This involves members of the team visiting a premise to check the notice is displayed 

and checking the local newspaper for the application advert (the applicant is 

contacted to confirm which newspaper). In instances where a premise cannot be 

visited, the team will accept photographic evidence from the applicant of the notice 

being displayed outside their property.  

 

 Once an applicant has displayed notice of their application outside their premise, a 

responsible authority/member of the public can make a representation against the 

application. Where relevant representations are made, the local authority must hold a 

hearing to consider them unless considered to be unnecessary. If an applicant 

wishes to appeal the decision made at the hearing, this is then dealt with by the 

Magistrates Court. From the audit sample tested there were no representations made 

against an application, so Internal Audit were unable to observe this particular 

process.  

Approval of application 

 As per the Constitution’s Scheme of Sub Delegation, the function of determining any 

application for the grant, renewal, variation or transfer of a licence, consent, permit or 

permission is delegated to the Head of Place. In practice, this has then been further 

delegated to the City Centre Improvement Officer (Licensing Lead). 

 Once an application has been checked by the City Centre Improvement Officers and 

the 28-day consultation period has passed, the application is then sent through to the 

Lead City Centre Improvement Officer for approval and his electronic signature can 

be added. However, there is currently no procedure in place for this approval in the 

City Centre Improvement Officer’s sickness or leave absence. This could cause a 

delay in the licensing process, impacting on the timeline enforced by the regulations.  

Fees and Charges 

 During the Council meeting on 28th February 2019 members reviewed the proposed 

fees and charges for 2019/20 and voted to approve the structure. Premises Licence 

fees for new applications, variations and renewals remain unchanged from the 

previous year.  

 It was confirmed that Business Support and the City Centre Improvement Officers 

check the value of a property using the gov.uk webpage. In cases where the 

applicant had paid the incorrect fee for their property banding, they were contacted 

and asked to pay the additional cost.  

 Internal Audit sample tested the application of fees for nine licence applications made 

between April 2019 and March 2020. All fees charged were in accordance with those 

agreed by the Council and have been received and correctly coded. 

Page 37



  Attachment 1      

11 
 

Conclusion 

It is evident that officers are committed to ensuring the Council meets the requirements of 

the regulations and have established an appropriately designed application process. Overall, 

there is reasonable assurance that new licence applications are being issued in accordance 

with the regulations and the correct fees have been paid by the applicant.  

 

The review did highlight some inconsistency within the licensing team regarding the detail of 

information being recorded on the system. A more consistent approach by the team is 

required to ensure a full audit trail is in place and easily accessible in case of query.   

Management Actions 

Two medium priority recommendations have been raised in regards to setting minimum 

requirements for documentation recording and retention on Information@Work; and 

implementing a process to delegate authority for approval of licences in Lead City Centre 

Improvement Officer’s absence.  

Management have responded positively to the recommendations made. 

 

Service Area: Policy and Resources 

Audit Activity: Housing Benefits - Overpayments 

Background 

Housing Benefit is available to those on a low income who need help paying their rent. 

Gloucester City Council (the Council) is reliant on the claimant informing them where they 

have had a change of circumstance which may affect their benefit entitlement. If this process 

is delayed, overpayments are realised. These overpayments should be recovered by the 

Council in a timely manner. The Revenues and Benefits service was outsourced to Civica 

Ltd in October 2011. 

Scope 

This audit review sought to determine whether there are appropriate processes and controls 

in place, and these are operating effectively for the identification, calculation, categorisation 

and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments. 

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory 

Control Assurance – Satisfactory 
 
Key Findings 

 The Council/Civica Revenue and Benefits contract includes service requirements for 

Housing Benefit overpayment recovery.  

Page 38



  Attachment 1      

12 
 

 
 The Council’s Constitution defines responsibilities for write off certification and there 

is a Billing, Collection and Enforcement Policy (currently being updated and 

finalised). 

 An overpayment of Housing Benefit is defined as ‘any amount paid to which there is 

no entitlement under the regulations’ and can occur as a result of:  

o Claimant error or fraud when making a new claim; 

o Claimant error or fraud because the claimant fails to notify the Council about a 

change in their circumstances; 

o Council error, i.e. a mistake made by Council/Civica staff; 

o An administrative delay, e.g. a delay by the Council in processing a notified 

change in circumstances; 

o Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) error e.g. the jobcentre plus, pension 

service, or disability and carers service make a mistaken benefit award; and 

o Third party error, e.g. landlord in receipt of Housing Benefit gives the Council 

incorrect information about a rent increase or fails to tell the Council information 

about their tenant. 

 From April 2019 to December 2019 the outstanding Housing Benefit overpayments 

had fallen from £5,051,944 to £4,868,218. As at September 2020, the Council’s 

outstanding Housing Benefit overpayments had further reduced to £4,347,559.  

 The Benefit Manager informed Internal Audit that overpayments are identified 

through several systems including: 

o Monthly 10% sample checks by the Intelligent Client Officer which would include 

the identification of overpayments due to Council error. Civica currently reports 

that the Council error rate is 0.13% which is significantly less that the DWP lower 

threshold of 0.48%;  

o The claimant informs them that there has been a change of circumstances i.e. 

they have started employment, however this may have occurred several 

weeks/months prior, so an overpayment has arisen; and 

o The DWP ‘Verify Earnings and Pensions’ system identifies changes in claimant’s 

income/pension. 

 The Civica Revenue and Benefits team have two Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) 

for preventing and measuring administrative delay: 

o The first KPI is a target of 21 days to process new Housing Benefit claims with 

the actual average for 2020/21 as at June 2020 of 13.10 days; and 

Page 39



  Attachment 1      

13 
 

o The second KPI is a target of nine days to process Housing Benefit adjustments 

with the actual average for 2020/21 as at June 2020 of 3.22 days. 

 The Council/Civica Revenue and Benefits contract stipulates how claimants and 

landlords will be communicated with when an overpayment has occurred. Internal 

Audit sampled four letters sent from the Council in February 2020 and found that they 

met the contract requirements. 

 The Council’s Policy states that the Council will use discretion when deciding 

whether to write off an overpayment. Internal Audit notes that in practise the Council 

would prefer not to write-off debt as at some point the claimant may either re-claim 

benefits or move into employment, and the Council would then start debt recovery 

procedures. 

 The Council’s Constitution states that the Head of Policy and Resources is 

responsible for writing off irrecoverable debts of less than £10,000. Internal Audit was 

able to verify that: 

o The Head of Policy and Resources receives details of Housing Benefit 

overpayment write-offs and gives particular scrutiny to those valued between 

£5,000 and £10,000 which he formally checks and approves; and 

o On the whole the write-off documentation completed by Civica had been 

completed and approved in line with the ‘Write Off Guidance’, however during 

testing Internal Audit found that two out of the sampled five had incorrect write-off 

codes.  

 The review has highlighted that on occasion it can take several months from 

identification that a write-off should take place to this being approved. Internal Audit 

advise that an expectation for the length of time for write-off debt approval should be 

reinforced. 

Conclusion 

Internal Audit can confirm, from the information provided and audit testing carried out, that 

there are appropriate processes and controls in place, and these are operating effectively for 

the identification, calculation and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments. However, 

system categorisation/coding could be improved, as well as updates to the Billing, Collection 

and Enforcement Policy.  

Management Actions 

Management have responded positively to the two medium priority recommendations made 

regards system categorisation/coding and update to the Billing, Collection and Enforcement 

Policy. 

 

  

Page 40



  Attachment 1      

14 
 

Summary of Substantial Assurance Opinions on Control 
 

Service Area: Policy and Resources 

Audit Activity: Accounts Payable 

Background 

The Accounts Payable function is to pay valid supplier invoices in respect of goods or 

services received within agreed payment terms. For the period 1st April 2020 to 5th August 

2020 purchase orders totalling £8.2m have been generated through the Accounts Payable 

team, it is therefore important to have robust and effective controls in place. 

Scope 

This audit reviewed the effectiveness of the arrangements for Accounts Payable as follows: 

 Procedures; 

 Staff access controls; 

 Setting up new vendors; 

 Supplier changes; 

 Purchase order transactions; 

 Invoice control; and 

 Reconciliations. 

This included audit testing of a sample of 10 purchase orders from initiation to transaction 

cycle completion for a series of expected controls. The period covered was April to August 

2020. The sample was stratified across service departments and capital projects and totalled 

£185,498. 

Risk Assurance – Substantial 

Control Assurance – Substantial 
 
Key Findings 

 The procedure notes are assessed to be comprehensive and a useful step by step 

guide to members of staff responsible for any part of the purchasing process. 

 Staff access controls will be dependent on their work role responsibilities and should 

therefore be differentiated. Appropriate controls were found to be in place for both 

staff requestor and approver roles. 

 

Page 41



  Attachment 1      

15 
 

 There are staff contingency controls operating correctly to authorise high value 

supplier invoices in excess of £25,000, this procedure is completed by senior 

members of the finance team. 

 The Civica supplier/vendor database includes five key controls to maintain integrity, 

and an up to date record within the Accounts payable system: i) mandatory data 

fields; ii) set up of new supplier accounts; iii) prevention of duplicate accounts; iv) 

prevention of duplicate transactions; and v) change of supplier bank account records. 

The review confirmed that these controls were operating appropriately. 

 The results for the sample of 10 purchase orders tested, provided full assurance that 

the expected controls were operating correctly. 

 Reconciliation of outstanding financial liabilities between the Civica purchasing and 

financials systems, is an essential control with the objective of avoiding the risk of 

unexplained differences occurring. The evidence reviewed by Internal Audit 

confirmed that a working day reconciliation between the two systems is completed, is 

up to date and that the outstanding liabilities in the two systems agreed with no 

unexplained financial differences present.   

Conclusion 

The review of the Accounts Payable control environment has provided substantial assurance 

that there are well developed embedded controls in place to mitigate against the risk of 

invalid purchase transactions being paid. 

Management Actions 

The audit report did not contain any recommendations, therefore there are no management 

actions required. 

 

  

Page 42



  Attachment 1      

16 
 

Summary of Special Investigations/Counter Fraud Activities 

Current Status 

As at 14th October 2020 there have been two new fraud/irregularity referrals received 

by Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) for investigation. One of the cases has been closed 

and the other remains ongoing. 

In respect of the closed case, concerns were raised in respect of three parking 

notices issued to an individual in 2017 then subsequently overturned, despite an 

appeal process finding that the fines were valid and should stand. Due to the time 

elapsed and staff changes within the Council, Internal Audit was unable to find any 

documentation to support the refunds and it is suspected that the instruction was in 

fact a verbal one. As a result of the ARA review, more robust and transparent 

procedures for documenting events such as this have been introduced by the 

Council to ensure that in future an audit trail of decision making is retained.  This 

includes the introduction of a new form for sign off by the Property Commissioning 

Manager and counter signature by the Section 151 Officer if any penalty notice is to 

be withdrawn, at whatever stage, as a result of member or executive instruction.  

Internal Audit has been advised by the Intelligent Client Officer (Revenues and 

Benefits) that the Empty Homes review reported to the last Committee has now been 

completed and all records have been updated to reflect the data captured during the 

exercise. There were no significant issues identified during this exercise. 

In addition, the ARA Counter Fraud Team in conjunction with the Intelligent Client 

Officer (Revenues and Benefits) have continued to work on the two ongoing cases in 

respect of Covid 19 Government issued small business grant payments.  

Any fraud alerts received by Internal Audit from National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) 

and other credible organisations are passed onto the relevant service areas within 

the Council, to alert staff to the potential fraud.  

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

Internal Audit continues to support the NFI which is a biennial data matching 

exercise administered by the Cabinet Office. The 2020/21 data collections are 

currently being uploaded to the Cabinet Office during October 2020 with the data 

matching reports due to be released between December 2020 and January 2021. 

The timetable can be found using the following link GOV.UK. 

Examples of data sets include housing, insurance, payroll, creditors, council tax, 

electoral register and licences for market trader/operator, taxi drivers and personal 

licences to supply alcohol. Not all matches are always investigated but where 

possible all recommended matches are reviewed by either Internal Audit or the 

appropriate service area within the Council.  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Attachment 2

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion

Reported to Audit 

and Governance 

Committee

Comments

Council Wide Health and Safety Limited Assurance Second Follow Up 1 Planned

Council Wide Purchasing: Low and Intermediate Value Transactions Limited Assurance 

Follow Up
1 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Council Wide IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Follow Up 1 Planned

Council Wide Key ICT Project Governance 1 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/11/2020 Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Council Wide Patch management 1 Planned

Council Wide Cyber Security 1 Planned

Council Wide Complaints Procedures
2 Deferred

Deferral (awaiting implementation of new system) 

approved in the Revised Internal Audit Plan 20/21. 

Council Wide Travel and Other Expenses Limited Assurance Follow Up 1 Audit in Progress

Council Wide Safeguarding 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 14/09/2020 Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Council Wide Agency Staff
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21.

Council Wide Code of Conduct for employees
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21.

Council Wide Compliance with Flexi Time - Annual Leave policies
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21.

Council Wide Effective use of Probationary period
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21.

Council Wide Scheme of Sub Delegation 1 Audit in Progress

Council Wide Confidential Reporting Procedure 1 Planned

Council Wide Business Rate Grants 2 Consultancy New activity. To be reported in 20/21 annual report.

Communities Section 202 reviews
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Communities Tenancy Rescue
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Communities Gloucester Community Building Collective 1 Planned

Communities Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Grants – Covid 19 1 Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 14/09/2020 New activity.  

Cultural and Trading Services Shopmobility Fees and Charges Limited Assurance Follow Up 2 Audit in Progress

Cultural and Trading Services Guildhall, Blackfriars and Museum – income received from events Limited 

Assurance Follow Up
1 Planned

Cultural and Trading Services City Events Programme
1 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Cultural and Trading Services Museum of Gloucester – income from generic sales and exhibition 

admission fees
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Cultural and Trading Services Staff Appraisal System 2 Consultancy To be reported in 20/21 annual report.

Place Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Place Gloucester Car Boot and Flea Market 2 Cancelled City no longer responsible for Car Boot.

Place Licensing - Premises 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/11/2020

Place Street-care Contract – follow up 2 Planned

Policy and Resources Freedom of Information (FoI) requests 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 14/09/2020 Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Policy and Resources Housing Benefits 2 Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/11/2020 Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Policy and Resources Property Investment Strategy 2 Audit in Progress Brought forward from 19/20 plan.

Policy and Resources Accounts Payable 2 Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 16/11/2020

Policy and Resources Bank Reconciliation
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Policy and Resources Turnover Certificate for Blackfriars Priory 2019/20 1 Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 14/09/2020

Policy and Resources Cemeteries and Crematorium – compliance with GDPR
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Policy and Resources Council Tax - refunds 1 Planned

Policy and Resources Debt Management (Sundry Debtors and Business Rates) 1 Audit in Progress

Policy and Resources Elections
1 Deferred

Deferral (no elections in 20/21) approved in the Revised 

Internal Audit Plan 20/21. 

Policy and Resources The Arbor – income collection
2 Deferred

Deferral (due to Covid) approved in the Revised Internal 

Audit Plan 20/21. 

Policy and Resources Building Control Shared Partnership Limited Assurance Follow Up 2 Planned Terms of Reference issued.

Policy and Resources Covid 19 – Housing Benefit Payments 1 Consultancy New activity. To be reported in 20/21 annual report.

Policy and Resources Data Capture Project 1 Consultancy New activity. To be reported in 20/21 annual report.

Page 1 of 1

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

Meeting: Audit and Governance Committee Date: 16th November 2020 

Subject: Strategic Risk Register Update  

Report Of: Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor) 

Wards Affected: Not applicable   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No 

Contact Officer: Theresa Mortimer, Head of Audit Risk Assurance   

 Email: theresa.mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk  Tel: 01452 
396430 

Appendices: 1. Strategic Risk Register as at 6th October 2020 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present the Strategic Risk Register (SRR) as at 6th October 2020 to 

Members for their awareness and consideration. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Audit and Governance Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the Strategic 

Risk Register be noted and endorsed. 
 
3.0 Background and Key Issues 
 

Risk Management - Maximising Opportunities by taking Managed Risks 
 
3.1 It has always been important for organisations to identify and manage their 

risks. This view has been reinforced by public sector legislation i.e. the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 where it states ‘A relevant authority 
must ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 
effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and 
objectives, ensures that the financial and operational management of the 
authority is effective and includes effective arrangements for the management 
of risk.’ 

 
3.2 In addition, the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 

Framework (CIPFA/SOLACE 2016) notes seven key principles to enable the 
development of good governance within public services, one of which states 
that good governance is ‘managing risks and performance through robust 
internal control and strong public financial management.’ 

 
 
 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 10

mailto:theresa.mortimer@gloucester.gov.uk


2 

Strategic Risk Register 
 
3.3 The Council’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 

provides the framework for the effective management of risks and 
opportunities within the Council, supports decision making at all levels, and 
aids delivery of the Council Plan values, key actions and projects. The 
Strategy also includes the process for monitoring and reporting of strategic 
risks. The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020–2023 was 
last updated and approved by Members on 20th January 2020 and 12th 
February 2020 (Cabinet approval following recommendation by Audit and 
Governance Committee). 

 
3.4 The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 requires 

the Council to assess risks at a strategic level through documentation and 
management of the SRR. The SRR is owned by Senior Management Team 
(SMT) and strategic risk owners are at SMT level. The SRR is reviewed and 
updated quarterly by SMT. 
 

3.5 Member receipt and endorsement of the SRR is completed twice a year 
by the Audit and Governance Committee and at year end by Cabinet. This 
is to enable Member awareness of the strategic risks facing the Council, 
the mitigation measures put in place to manage them and the impact on 
decisions to be made by the Council. 

 
3.6 This report is the first SRR update to Members within 2020/21. It is based on 

the Council’s SRR presented to and agreed by SMT on 6th October 2020. 
 

3.7 As at 6th October 2020, four of the strategic risks had High current risk scores. 
These relate to business continuity management (both operational and ICT), 
management of information in accordance with legislation and ongoing 
maintenance of the Property Investment Strategy. The four risks continue to 
be closely monitored by SMT, but given their strategic importance to the 
Council, they remain high risk areas. The below table confirms the risk score 
direction of travel within 2020/21 for the four High current risk score strategic 
risks.   
 

Risk 
No. 

Risk Description Original 
Risk Score 

Current 
Risk Score 

Current Risk 
Score 

 Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Quarter 2 
2020/21 

1.8 Failure to manage information 
in accordance with legislation. 
 

16 8 8 

1.9 Ability to respond effectively to 
unexpected events in support 
of our communities (e.g. 
weather/terror attack/phone 
system failure/other). 
 

12 8 8 

Page 48



3 

Risk 
No. 

Risk Description Original 
Risk Score 

Current 
Risk Score 

Current Risk 
Score 

 Quarter 1 
2020/21 

Quarter 2 
2020/21 

1.10 Council services loss for a 
significant period, due to 
technology failure (leading to 
other financial, reputational and 
information governance risks). 
 

16 8 8 

1.14 Negative financial implications 
due to inappropriate delivery 
and management of the 
Property Investment Strategy; 
and a risk of political priorities 
diluting commercial 
considerations around hedging. 
 

16 8 8 

 
3.8 Within the first quarter of 2020/21, a strategic risk benchmarking exercise was 

undertaken by Audit Risk Assurance (ARA) against six neighbouring and 
similar local authorities. The outcomes were then presented to SMT for 
consideration. The main aim of the benchmarking analysis was to review the 
categories / types of risk recorded within the strategic risk registers and 
evaluate whether Gloucester City Council had considered and captured all 
relevant key risks associated with delivering the Council’s objectives. 
 
SMT scrutiny and consideration of the benchmarking information concluded 
that the strategic risks identified and assessed by Gloucester City Council 
were in line with expectations of the Council’s areas of business and other 
similar authorities. 

 
At the request of SMT, this benchmarking exercise will be undertaken 
annually, at the first quarter of the financial year. 

 
3.9 During the first two quarters of 2020/21, two emerging strategic risk areas 

have been regularly discussed and considered by SMT: 
 

• The impact to the Council’s services and business continuity, in the event 
of a new or recurrent pandemic crisis, globally, nationally and/or locally; 
and 

• The impact, on the Council, of the UK’s exit from the European Union 
(EU), including possible future funding reductions and/or increased costs, 
particularly with a potential ‘no deal’ exit. 
 

SMT discussion included consideration of the wider relevant strategic themes 
already considered within the SRR. The decision of SMT was to note the risk 
areas and provide confirmation that both would be continually monitored 
within year. Based on this position, the individual risks have not been included 
on the strategic risk register as at 6th October 2020. 
 

3.10 No new strategic risks have been added to the SRR within 2020/21 up to 6th 
October 2020. Also, no strategic risks have been removed from the SRR 
during this period.  

Page 49



4 

4.0  Social Value Considerations 
 
4.1 There are no ‘Social Value’ considerations arising out of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
5.0 Environmental Implications 
 
5.1 There are no ‘Environmental’ implications arising out of the recommendations 

in this report. 
 
6.0 Alternative Options Considered 
 
6.1 The alternative option is not to present the Strategic Risk Register to 

Members. This option is not compliant with the CIPFA: Audit Committees: 
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition) and does 
not support strategic risk awareness or informed prudent decision making. 

 
7.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
7.1 The CIPFA: ‘Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and 

Police (2018)’ confirms that the role of an Audit Committee includes keeping 
up to date with the risk profile of an organisation through regular review of the 
risk profile and areas of strategic risk. 

 
7.2 This is supported by the Gloucester City Council Constitution, which confirms 

the role of the Audit and Governance Committee. This includes the function to 
‘monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance 
arrangements’ including ‘monitoring the arrangements for the identification, 
monitoring and control of strategic and operational risk within the Council’. 

 
8.0 Future Work and Conclusions 
 
8.1 An embedded risk management approach helps to support the challenges 

that the Council may face, allowing it to react dynamically to changing 
circumstances by enabling the Council to handle risk effectively and deliver 
successful outcomes. 

 
8.2 The Strategic Risk Register will continue to be formally reviewed and updated 

quarterly by SMT, being presented to the Audit and Governance Committee 
twice a year and Cabinet at financial year-end. 

 
9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the report 

recommendations. However, there are a number of risks within the Strategic 
Risk Register which, if not managed, have the potential to expose the Council 
to financial costs which are not provided for within existing budgets. The 
documented current controls and mitigating actions aim to manage the risk of 
Council exposure to these costs. 

 
 (Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.) 
 
 
 

Page 50



5 

10.0 Legal Implications 
 
10.1 None specifically arising from the report recommendations. 
 
10.2 It is fundamental that the Council has an embedded risk management 

framework (including a Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 
2020-2023) which considers the identification, recording and management of 
risks to the Council in the delivery of its priorities and objectives. 

 
10.3 The existence and application of an effective Risk Management Policy 

Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 (including Member review of the Strategic 
Risk Register and awareness of strategic risks) assists prudent decision 
making. Failure to identify and manage strategic risks could lead to 
inappropriate decision making, unnecessary liability and costly legal 
challenge. 

 
 (One Legal has been consulted in the preparation of this report.) 
 
11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications  
 
11.1 Failure to deliver on effective risk management, particularly during periods of 

significant change, may have a detrimental effect on the achievement of the 
potential opportunities and adverse effects that challenge the assets, 
reputation and objectives of the Council, strategic decision making and the 
wellbeing of our stakeholders. 

 
12.0  People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:  
 
12.1 A requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 is for the Council 

to ‘ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 
effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and 
objectives, ensures that the financial and operational management of the 
authority is effective and includes effective arrangements for the management 
of risk.’ 

 
Adoption of the Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 
2020/2023 and the associated framework support and ensure compliance 
with the Council’s equality policies. 

 
12.2 The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or 

actual negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required. 
 
13.0  Community Safety Implications 

 
13.1 There are no ‘Community Safety’ implications arising out of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
14.0  Staffing & Trade Union Implications 
 
14.1 There are no ‘Staffing and Trade Union’ implications arising out of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 

 
 

Page 51



6 

Background Documents: 
 
➢ Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015; 
➢ Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

(CIPFA/SOLACE); and 
➢ Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023. 

Page 52



1 

Appendix 1: Strategic Risk Register Report – Quarter 2 2020/21 (06/10/2020 
SMT) 

 

SRR1 Strategic Risk Register 
 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

SRR1.1 Non 
achievement of 
the Money Plan 
– including the 
annual savings / 
income targets 
and the result of 
a balanced 
budget 

4 4 16 *Budget setting process – 
including consultation; 
management/leadership input 
into savings targets; and 
Overview & Scrutiny and 
Council involvement. 
*Forecasting Money Plan for 
medium term. 
*Allocation of individual 
savings/income targets to an 
SMT sponsor, Cabinet 
Member and leading 
manager. 
*Rigorous monthly monitoring 
of the Council’s financial 
position - monthly budget 
monitoring (including budget 
savings programme lines) at 
budget holder level (Finance 
led) and by SMT. 
* Financial Services staff 
professionally qualified in 
accountancy-related 
disciplines. 
*Assurance reviews by 
Internal Audit to ensure 
compliance with approved 
policies and procedures. 
*Service Plans aligned with 
resources and subject to 
regular review. 

3 2 6     3 2 6 Head of Policy 
& Resources 

P
age 53



2 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

SRR1.2 Adverse public 
and media 
relations 

3 3 9 *Dedicated communications 
and marketing resource with 
defined service scope – 
service delivery by County 
Council (SLA). 
* Experienced Business 
Partner who is part of SMT 
meetings and regular catch-
ups and supervises Business 
Advisor. 
*Regular monitoring of press 
coverage. 
*Formal route for media press 
contact (controlled approach). 
*Standardised FOI approach 
with FOI Champions. 
*Dedicated support for key 
consultations. 
*Communication Plans on 
key campaigns,  
*Internal Communications 
Channel Plan. 
*Complaints policy / 
monitoring. 
*Agreed to purchase 
GovDelivery (Nov. 20). 
* New website includes 
dedicated council news 
section. 

3 2 6     2 2 4 Corporate 
Director - 
Partnerships 

SRR1.3 Lack of 
competence, 
staff 
engagement, 
probity and 
professionalism 
within the 
authority 
leading to 
diminished 

3 3 9 *Dedicated HR resource with 
defined service scope – 
service delivery by County 
Council (s101 agreement). 
*Adherence to best practice 
recruitment and selection 
procedures and principles. 
*Member and staff training. 
*Complaints monitoring. 
*Member role descriptors. 

3 2 6     3 1 3 Corporate 
Director - 
Partnerships 

P
age 54



3 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

performance, 
inappropriate 
behaviour, and 
failure to comply 
with governance 
arrangements 

*Codes of conduct for 
members and officers. 
*Defined officer roles. 
*Staff 1:1s and performance 
appraisals. 
*Disciplinary procedure. 
*Adherence to health and 
safety Policy and procedures. 
*Staff survey. 
*Staff engagement activities. 
*Governance Group bi-
monthly meetings. 
*Council Values and 
behaviours refreshed and 
adopted. 
*Development Plan and 
Learning & Training Plan well 
established with on-going 
monitoring and review 
*OD Plan in place. 
*Talent management scheme 
and apprenticeship scheme 
in place. 
*Change Champions group 
*Action Learning Sets for 
Team Leaders. 
*Coaching and mentoring 
offer. 

SRR1.4 Failure to 
effectively 
manage 
contracts and 
SLAs with key 
partners / other 
significant 
bodies, 
including: 
Amey, Civica, 
Aspire, 

3 3 9 *Central list held of all 
contracts and SLAs with 
named responsible officers 
and Members. 
*In set up of the partnerships: 
-Corporate procurement 
strategy and procedures; 
Contract Standing Orders; 
Constitution requirements; 
and Availability of advice from 
legal, finance & procurement. 

3 2 6     2 2 4 Corporate 
Director - 
Service 
Transformation 

P
age 55



4 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

Gloucestershire 
Airport, VCS 
organisations,  
Gloucestershire 
County Council 
(e.g. Audit 
shared service) 
a 

-Documentation on the 
Council contracts register. 
*Partnership specific controls 
required (for each partner): 
-Documented signed SLA. 
-Lead contact officers 
assigned to each partner. 
-Regular performance 
management meetings, with 
reporting to SMT/Committee. 
-SLAs incorporate 
contingency business plan 
approach to mitigate loss of 
service. 
-Partnership risk registers – 
either individually or within 
the service risk register. 
-Governance arrangements 
identifying where decisions 
are taken. 
-Agreement of SLA KPIs, 
performance standards and 
payments (within contract). 
-Ongoing negotiation with 
partners to review current 
contract contents, to ensure 
up to date (e.g. GDPR 
considerations) and fit for 
purpose. 

SRR1.5 Failure to 
support and 
enable business 
growth within 
the city 

3 3 9 *Support local businesses 
both start up and new - 
‘Better Business For All’. 
*Partnership support for 
skills/jobs and attraction of 
inward investment. 
*Council’s promotion of city 
through links with GFirst LEP; 
and with adjacent authorities 
(e.g. JCS). 

3 2 6     2 2 4 Head of Place 

P
age 56



5 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

*Cultural Strategy – including 
6 monthly review and update. 
*Liaison with Business 
Improvement District 
(including consideration of 
uncertainties arising from the 
UK leaving the EU). 
*Regeneration and Economic 
Development Strategy in 
place. 
*Ongoing review and bidding 
for regeneration funding, with 
continued focus on 
regeneration sites. 

SRR1.6 Loss of finance, 
resource and 
reputation due 
to fraudulent 
activity 

4 3 12 *The following are approved 
policies available to officers: 
-Anti-fraud and corruption 
strategy (including Anti-
bribery policy and Anti-money 
laundering policy). 
-Whistle blowing policy. 
-Fraud response plan. 
*Financial regulations 
(including standing orders). 
*Existing internal control 
framework. 
*Internal Audit inc. Audit & 
Governance Committee and 
annual risk based internal 
audit plan (deterrent). 
*External audit presence 
(deterrent). 
*Benefit case referral to the 
Single Fraud Investigation 
Service – DWP. 
*Brilliant Basics modules 
(fraud awareness, project 
management and influencing 
skills) available to 

4 1 4     4 1 4 Head of Policy 
& Resources P

age 57



6 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

management team. 
*SLA with ARA (County 
hosted) for drawdown of days 
from Glos. Counter Fraud 
Unit for targeted anti-fraud 
work – Council position 
reviewed monthly by S151 
Officer and Chief Internal 
Auditor. 

SRR1.7 Failure to 
deliver key 
regeneration 
priorities 
(including Kings 
Quarter and 
Blackfriars) 

3 3 9 *Regeneration Advisory 
Board. 
*Capital Monitoring Steering 
Group & existing capital 
programme controls. 
*Brilliant Basics modules 
(project management and 
influencing skills) available to 
management team. 
*Project specific controls that 
should be in place: 
-Project plans in place for 
major schemes. 
-Project review meetings led 
by experienced/qualified 
Members and Officers with 
third party links/presence 
(e.g. developers and 
associated commercial 
agents). 
-Project update reporting to 
Cabinet and Council (in line 
with project plan milestones). 
- Re-assessment of projects 
at appropriate points to 
review objectives and 
deliverables. 
- Maintenance and review of 
project risk registers for each 
regeneration project. 

3 2 6     2 2 4 Head of Place 

P
age 58



7 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

-Ongoing internal review and 
financial scrutiny of projects. 

SRR1.8 Failure to 
manage 
information in 
accordance with 
legislation 

4 4 16 *IT Security: 
-Civica ITO contract includes 
key IT security control 
continued delivery with 
ongoing client monitoring 
required. 
-Virus protection (desktop, 
server, email, attachments 
etc) and fire wall controls. 
-Monitoring of internet access 
and restriction on sites 
permitted to access 
-E-mail content scanning 
(incl. Forcepoint). 
-Physical security and 
protection of IT suite. 
-Procedures for login 
lockdown when IT staff 
leaving organisation. 
-Data cleansing of IT 
equipment prior to disposal. 
-Client monitoring (in-house 
intelligent client function) 
team in place. 
-IT risk register monthly 
review and update by the IT 
Operations Board. 
*Use of information: 
-FOI procedures; 
standardised approach; & 
FOI Champions. 
-Information management 
rules within the Constitution. 
-Data Protection guide and 
GDPR 
implementation/training 
action plan. 

4 2 8     4 1 4 Head of Policy 
& Resources 

P
age 59



8 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

-Staff training and induction 
to confirm appropriate 
management of information. 
*Info stored / accessed - 
Building access controls. 
*SIRO role allocated. 
*Information Governance 
Board and ICT Strategy 
Board in place. 
*Suite of information policies 
in place and available on 
NETconsent policy 
management system. 

SRR1.9 Ability to 
respond 
effectively to 
unexpected 
events in 
support of our 
communities 
(e.g. 
weather/terror 
attack/phone 
system 
failure/other) 

4 3 12 *Up-to-date Emergency 
Response Plan, Flood Plan, 
Vulnerable People Plan, 
Pandemic Plan etc. drafted in 
conjunction with agencies, 
government departments and 
other local authorities. 
*Regular review and updating 
of Emergency Response Plan 
and other plans. 
*Allocated Emergency Team 
Leaders within the Council 
e.g. District Emergency 
Controller and Gold Officer 
roles. 
*Business continuity plans in 
place for each Service. 
*Bad weather policy and 
communications. 
*Climate change strategy 
supported by Local 
Resilience Forums. 
*Emergency Contacts list 
updated every quarter. 
*Defined Mutual Aid 
Agreement including all 

4 2 8 Review and refresh all service 
Business Continuity Plans to 
ensure up-to-date and 
appropriate content 

29-Nov-
2020 

3 2 6 Head of 
Communities 

P
age 60



9 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

Gloucestershire local 
authorities. 
*Continued testing of 
Emergency Plan 
arrangements; bi annual 
exercises & live events (e.g. 
Christmas call out exercise); 
and use of Mutual Aid 
agreement. With ongoing 
shared learning. 

SRR1.10 Council services 
loss for a 
significant 
period, due to 
failure and 
limited capacity 
of IT 
infrastructure 
(leading to other 
financial, 
reputational and 
information 
governance 
risks) 

4 4 16 *Up to date IT asset register. 
*Appropriate secure physical 
location of the servers. 
*Medium term IT 
infrastructure investment 
budget agreed and delivered 
within 2016/17. 
*Infrastructure/network 
topology (mapping) with 
action plan for regular review 
and update including 
identification, risk 
assessment, costing and 
priority ranking of IT 
infrastructure options for 
investment. 
*PSN Compliance Certificate 
achieved. 
*ICT Business Continuity 
Plan review and renewal 
completed (platform for DR 
and to be expanded for use 
as the platform for all GCC 
systems post relocation from 
HKP). 
*ICT Strategy in place. 
*Information Governance 
Board and ICT Security 
Board in place. 

4 2 8 An ICT internal audit to be 
completed to support the ICT 
Action Plan 

31-Jan-2021 3 2 6 Head of Policy 
& Resources 

P
age 61



10 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

SRR1.11 Inability of the 
council to 
identify viable 
plans to achieve 
efficiencies 
and/or income 
generation. 
Inability of the 
council to 
identify viable 
plans to achieve 
efficiencies 
and/or income 
generation. 

4 4 16 *Budget setting process – 
including consultation; 
management/leadership input 
into savings targets; and 
Overview & Scrutiny and 
Council involvement. 
*SMT and Cabinet review 
and approval of Money Plan 
savings delivery options – 
including commissioning and 
alternative delivery 
opportunities for savings and 
income generation. 
*Allocation of individual 
savings/income targets to an 
SMT sponsor, Cabinet 
Member and leading 
manager. 
*Rigorous monthly monitoring 
of the Council’s financial 
position - monthly income / 
budget monitoring at budget 
holder level (Finance led) and 
by SMT. 
*Engagement with GMT to 
ensure corporate ownership 
of financial challenges and 
need for active identification 
of efficiency & income 
opportunities for the Council. 

3 2 6     3 2 6 Head of Policy 
& Resources 

SRR1.13 Inability of the 
Council to 
deliver the 
Corporate Plan 
to 2020 

4 4 16 *Corporate Plan developed 
jointly by Cabinet and Senior 
Management Team, 
scrutinised and endorsed by 
the wider Council 
membership. 
*Corporate Plan approval 
completed. 
*Budget Strategy and Money 

2 2 4     2 2 4 Managing 
Director 

P
age 62



11 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

Plan designed to 
appropriately resource the 
delivery of the Corporate 
Plan. 
*Performance management 
framework. 
*Service planning processes 
to ensure Corporate Plan link 
to Service Plans. 
*Appraisal processes link 
personal objectives and 
development needs to the 
needs of the organisation, 
talent development and 
personal well being. 

SRR1.14 Negative 
financial 
implications due 
to inappropriate 
delivery and 
management of 
the Property 
Investment 
Strategy; and a 
risk of political 
priorities diluting 
commercial 
considerations 
around hedging  

4 4 16 *Property Investment 
Strategy (including risk 
management considerations) 
endorsed by Cabinet and 
approved by Council. 
*Property Investment Board 
set up with a defined Terms 
of Reference to oversee the 
investment of the £80m fund. 
*Council approved delegation 
of authority to the Council 
Solicitor to conclude 
documents (in line with senior 
officer agreed heads of 
terms) to enable completion 
of each acquisition. 
*Property Investment Board 
to receive investment 
prospectus and officer 
evaluations of potential 
property acquisitions; to 
make recommendations to 
the s151 Officer with regards 
to investment; and to oversee 

4 2 8     4 2 8 Head of Policy 
& Resources 

P
age 63



12 

Risk Ref Risk 
Original 
Impact 

Original 
Likeliho
od 

Original 
Score 

Description Current 
Impact 

Current 
Likeliho
od 

Current 
Score 

Further Mitigating Action Timescale 
Target 
Impact 

Target 
Likeliho
od 

Target 
Score 

Risk Owner 

the due diligence and 
acquisition process in 
accordance with the Property 
Investment Strategy. 
*Property Investment Board 
to monitor fund position 
(including cost of borrowing) 
and the management of the 
estate, with outcomes to be 
reported to senior officers 
and Members. 
*Legal implications ongoing 
review to ensure relevant 
local authority powers remain 
in place to support the 
Property Investment Strategy. 

 
 
 

P
age 64



Gloucester City Council 
Audit and Governance Work Programme 2020-2021 

(Updated 30 October 2020) 
 

 

Item  Format Committees Lead Officer Comments 
 

16th November 2020     

1. Statement of Accounts Written Report Audit and Gov Head of Policy and 
Resources 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

2. Annual Audit Letter 2020/21 Written Report Audit and Gov Deloitte Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

3. Treasury Management 
Performance 2020/21 Six Monthly 
Update 

Written Report Audit and Gov 
 

Cabinet 

Head of Policy and 
Resources 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

4. Internal Audit Activity  2020/21 – 
Progress Report 

Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

 

5. Strategic Risk Register Update Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA & RM 
Shared Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

6. Audit and Governance Committee 
Work Programme 

Timetable -------------- -------------- Standing Agenda Item 

18th January 2021     

1. Deloitte – Grants Audit Report Written Report Audit and Gov Deloitte Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

2. Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 – 
Monitoring Report 

Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

3. Outside Bodies Written Report Audit and Gov 
Cabinet 
Council 

Corporate Director Requested by Committee 

4. Annual Governance Statement  
Improvement Plan 2019/2020 
Update 

Written Report Audit and Gov 
 

Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 11



 

5. Management update - Limited 
Assurance Report – Health and 
Safety 

Written Report Audit and Gov 
 

Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Requested by Committee 

6. Audit and Governance Committee 
Work Programme 

Timetable -------------- -------------- Standing Agenda Item 

8th March 2021     

1. Annual Risk Management Report 
2020/21 

Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service  

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

2.  Internal Audit Activity 2020/21 – 
progress report.  

Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service  

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

3. Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

4. Strategic Risk Register Written Report Audit and Gov Risk and ARA Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

5. Annual Report of the Audit and 
Governance Committee 

Written Report Audit and Gov Head of IA&RM Shared 
Service 

Part of the Committee’s annual work 
programme 

6. Audit and Governance Committee 
Work Programme 

Timetable --------------- --------------- Standing Agenda Item P
age 66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Treasury Management Performance 2020/21 Six Monthly Update
	Appendix 1 Prudential and Treasury Indicators
	Appendix 2 Interest Rate Forecasts

	9 Internal Audit Activity  2020/21 - Progress Report
	Quarterly Progress Report (Appendix 1)
	Activity Spreadsheet (Appendix 2)

	10 Strategic Risk Register Update
	Strategic Risk Register (Appendix 1)

	11 Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme

